ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2004
3:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair

Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Representative Kelly Wl f

Representative Sharon Cissna (via tel econference)

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Mary Kapsner
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 378

"An Act relating to the Al aska Food, Drug, and Cosnetic
Act, including sales, advertising, certain devices, food
donors, and food banks; nmaking certain violations of
organic food provisions and of the Al aska Food, Drug, and
Cosnetic Act unfair nethods of conpetition and unfair or
deceptive acts or practices under certain of the state's
unfair trade practices and consuner protection |aws; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 378 OQUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 337(STA)

"An Act relating to anatom cal donor registries, to an
anatomcal gift awareness fund, to an anatomcal gift
awar eness pr ogram to not or vehi cl e | i censes and
registrations, and to state identification cards."”

- MOVED CS 337(HES) OUT OF COWMM TTEE
PREVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 378

SHORT TITLE: FOOD, DRUGS, COSMETI CS, CERTAI N DEVI CES
REPRESENTATI VE( S) :

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- February 5, 2004



01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H) HES, JUD

02/ 05/ 04 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 337

SHORT TITLE: ANATOM CAL G FTS REG STRY
REPRESENTATI VE(S): MCGUI RE

01/ 12/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 04 (H STA, HES, FIN

01/ 20/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

01/ 20/ 04 (H Heard & Held

01/ 20/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

01/ 27/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

01/ 27/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 337(STA) Qut of
Comm ttee

01/ 27/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 27/ 04 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 27/ 04 (H -- Meeting Canceled --

01/ 28/ 04 (H STA RPT CS(STA) NT 6DP 1NR

01/ 28/ 04 (H DP: GRUENBERG SEATON, HOLM LYNN,

01/ 28/ 04 (H BERKOW TZ, WEYHRAUCH; NR: COGHI LL

02/ 03/ 04 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 03/ 04 (H Heard & Held

02/ 03/ 04 (H) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 05/ 04 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL W LLI AMS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke as sponsor of HB 378.

GERALDI NE MCI NTOSH, St af f

to Representative Bill WIIlians

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 378 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

ELI SE HSI EH, Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Envi ronmental Section

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 5, 2004



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 378 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

ROBI N NORTHSEYER, Owner

Northern Hospitality Training

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 378.

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff

to Representative Lesil MCuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an anmendnent to CSHB
337(STA) for Representative MQ@iire, sponsor, and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

RAY VI DI C
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 337.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-09, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:03
p. m Representatives WIson, WIlf, Coghill, and Seaton
were present at the call to order. Representatives Gatto
and Cissna (via teleconference) joined the comrittee as the
meeting was in progress.

HB 378- FOOD, DRUGS, COSMETI CS, CERTAI N DEVI CES

Number 0091

CHAIR WLSON announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO. 378, "An Act relating to the Al aska
Food, Drug, and Cosnetic Act, including sales, advertising,
certain devices, food donors, and food banks; naking
certain violations of organic food provisions and of the
Al aska Food, Drug, and Cosnetic Act wunfair nethods of
conpetition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices under
certain of the state's unfair trade practices and consuner
protection |laws; and providing for an effective date."”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- February 5, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE BILL WLLIAMS, Alaska State Legislature,
testified as sponsor of HB 337, spoke to the nerits of the

bill. He explained that he has been the House Finance
Subcomm ttee Chair for the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation (DEC) for several years. During that tine

there have been conplaints concerning the food safety
program particularly in Ketchi kan where [businesses] have
paid a lot, but have not had the inspections necessary to

ensure food safety. Representative WIllianms told nenbers
that sonme businesses have gone 18 nonths to 24 nonths
wi t hout i nspections. He said that |ast year he asked the

Comm ssi oner of Environnental Conservation to cone up wth
a program that would address this issue, and the bill
before them today does just that.

Number 0325

GERALDI NE McI NTOSH, Staff to Representative Bill WIIians,
Al aska State Legislature, testified on HB 378 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers. She read the sponsor statenent
into the record as follows [original punctuation provided]:

HB 378 anends provisions in Title 17 relating to
the powers of the Conm ssioner of the Departnent
of Environnental Conservation (DEC) relating to
food offered or sold to the public. The bill
nmakes it possible for DEC to require food-
handl i ng operators to becone trai ned and

certified and assess fines. Both of these
capacities are needed as part of the new food
safety paradigm - Active Mnagerial Control. I n
addi tion, the Dbill defines a violation of

| abeling or advertising as a violation of the
unfair trade and consumer protection provisions.

Currently, AS 17.20.005 allows the Conm ssioner
of DEC to issue orders, regulations, permts,
enbar goes, and quarantines. This includes
i nspection, sanitation standards, food handling
nmet hods, and | abeling. Under this bill, the
Comm ssi oner of DEC wll have addi ti onal
authority to ensure know edge of food safety and
sanitation by individuals who handle or prepare
food for the public, and persons who supervise or
enpl oy those individuals. This bill al so
authorizes DEC to inpose a civil fine for a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- February 5, 2004



violation of the Al aska Food, Drug, and Cosnetic
Act .

HB 378 also clarifies that a violation of the
| abel or advertisenent provisions in AS 17.20, or
a violation of the representation requirenent in
AS 17.06 is an unfair or deceptive trade practice
under Al aska's Statutes. This wll allow the
Attorney General’s office to investigate |abeling
violations that are not food safety or sanitation
concerns.

Number 0481

KRI STIN RYAN, Director, D vision of Environnental Health,
Department of Environnmental Conservation, testified in
support of HB 378. In response to Chair WIlson's comrents
that this program appears to be a case of the "fox guarding
t he chicken house", Ms. Ryan explained that in the past the
Division of Environnmental Health has relied entirely on
i nspections to ensure that restaurants and food processors
wer e practicing safe f ood handl i ng t echni ques.
Unfortunately, by only relying on inspections, the division
was only in the high-risk facilities 60 percent of the
time, once per year. One day out of 365 days per year is
not enough to ensure [that these businesses] were using the
sanme techni ques when [inspectors] were not there.

Nunmber 0586

M5. RYAN told the nenbers that the division researched what
other jurisdictions have done [who have simlar limtations
in manpower], and that is how the Active Managerial Control
pl an cane about. She said that this plan puts nore
responsibility on t he owner s and operators of
establishments to take responsibility for safe food
handl i ng. This would be a nore conprehensive program that
would allow the division nore time to concentrate on
i nspections, she conmented. Ms. Ryan explained that the
businesses wll be asked to train and certify staff in
basic food handling practices and to develop standard
operating procedures for very sinplistic practices such as,
hand washing after handling noney or how to handle a sick
enpl oyee. Those procedures will have to be in witing and
available to the division for review when doing inspections
and paper audits, she said.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 5, 2004



CHAI R W LSON asked who will be paying for the training.

M5. RYAN replied that there are multiple levels of
certification. For exanpl e, she said, there are
certifications for nmanagers, and every food facility nust
have one nmanager enployed by the conpany that has gone
through a national food safety certification program Ms.
Ryan added that many restaurants already have trained
staff. She summarized that the division will work to make
it easier for businesses to get their enployees certified.

VS. RYAN told the nenbers that anot her | evel of
certification is for food handl ers. Handl er certification
will be undertaken by the state through an on-line data
base system whereby [the food handler] would log onto a
conputer and get the training on-line. This [training and
certification] will be available to anyone and is really
fundanmental [information], she said. Ms. Ryan commented
that this [plan] is sonmething that 41 states already do.

Nunmber

M5. RYAN said the third training that DEC wll provide
concerns the devel opnent of standard operating procedures

that the departnment will be requiring [of businesses]. The
i nspectors will not only be out inspecting [businesses],
but will also be helping them conme into conpliance with the

new requi rements, she said. M. Ryan told the nenbers that
the departnent got a grant from the Food and Drug
Adm nistration (FDA) to create a CD that wll give
[ busi nesses] all the forns that will be necessary to create
their own [standard operating procedures].

Number 0733

CHAIR WLSON comented that her concern is for snmall
busi nesses [and the burden this plan may have on thenj.
She asked if, for exanple, a group of people holding a
fundrai ser where hotdogs are being cooked will be required
to have this training [and certification] too.

M5. RYAN replied that the tenporary food service permt
will continue as it currently is. Those who provide food
for fairs, church socials, etc. have to cone in and go
through the tenporary food service permt process which is
currently in place. That [tenporary food service] permt

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- February 5, 2004



does require participants to sit through a two-hour course,
she said. The permt is good for 2 years.

CHAIR WLSON asked how the exanple she provided fits into
this program

M5. RYAN responded that individuals in Chair WIson's
exanple would not fit into the new paradi gm

CHAIR WLSON asked for clarification that it would not be
necessary to take the two-hour course.

M5. RYAN replied that those doing fundraisers fall under
the tenporary food service permtting system which requires
that a two-hour course be conpl et ed.

Number 0811

CHAIR WLSON asked how soneone in Wangell would get this
tenporary food service permt.

M5. RYAN responded that the food inspector would cone to
the [permttees].

Nunmber 0835

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF expressed concern about establishing a
new standard for food handlers. He asked if this
| egi slation would apply to slaughterhouses, canneries, or
processors |i ke snoke houses, and sausage nakers.

M5. RYAN said that food processors do not fall under this
par adi gm because [these businesses] are already required to
nmeet very stringent standards through the Hazard Analysis
Critical Control Point program [HACCP] which is nmuch nore
conplex than what 1is being suggested here. Ms. Ryan
explained that the program DEC is recomending is nuch
sinpler than the HACCP program She comented that neat
processors are regulated by the US. Departnent  of
Agricul ture.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if high school students who work
part tinme in MDonalds will be required to be tested.

M5. RYAN responded that is correct. She told the nenbers

t hat when she was in high school in Oregon she had to go to
the Division of Mbtor Vehicles to obtain her food handler's

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- February 5, 2004



card. Ms. Ryan pointed out that these people are serving
the public food 365 days per year so it seens realistic
that these workers would know how to serve food safely.

Number 0954

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how different the program she
is proposing is from HACCP. He explained that he has been
t hrough HACCP and would not want to wish it on any one.
Represent ati ve Seat on asked what the regul ations are.

M5. RYAN replied that the DEC regulations wll be nuch
different from HACCP. She explained that the division
borrowed the HACCP nodel when devel oping the new program
The division took the concept that witten operating
procedures for sone fundanental safety issues |ike hand
washing and enployee health, are a good idea. She
clarified that DEC is not going to require food operators
to analyze their entire system and develop critical control
sections where risks are controll ed.

Number 1016

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the certification for the
manageri al position is close to HACCP.

M5. RYAN responded that [nanagerial position] certification
requires a training course that is already offered in the
state by nultiple providers. It requires sitting through a
course and taking a test at the end, she added. She
acknow edged that it is nore information than the food
handl ers are expected to |earn.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Ryan to provide the
commttee with a witten specification on hand washi ng.

MS. RYAN responded that it would be sonething like "if you
were handling noney, you nust wash your hands before you
handl e food." She commented that a |ot of the food chains
have already inplemented many of these requirenents and
have standard operating procedures that enployees can refer
to. There are sinple things included like "wear gloves if
you are handling food", she said. Sonme standards require
that enployees wash their hands every hour. Ms. Ryan
explained that there wll be a vetting process as the
regul ations are drafted, where the division will conduct
wor kshops in various conmunities to discuss proposals wth

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- February 5, 2004



the regulated industry. Active Managerial Control is the
proposal DEC believes is the best nodel to use, she said,
but she enphasized that there will be variations as the
regul ation drafting process continues.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if he wunderstands M. Ryan's
response to nmean that hand washing regul ati ons woul d not be

sonething like an individual is required to hold their
hands under warm water for 35 seconds and use a certain
kind of soap. WIIl those details be determned by the

manageri al staff.

M5. RYAN replied that there could be that Ilevel of detail
in the operating procedures; however, DEC will be providing
bl ank fornms for [businesses].

Number 1199

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that he is troubled that a
civic event with the Mwose Cub, for exanple, would be
"targeted." He added that he is involved with many church
potlucks and is not very interested in DEC conmng into the
church to tell the nenbers that they cannot handle food.
Representative Coghill asked if Ms. Ryan could provide sone
confort that this is not the road DEC i s goi ng down.

Nunber 1252

M5. RYAN enphasized that DEC is not increasing their
oversight. A church event is an exenpt activity, she said.
Ms. Ryan explained that tenporary service permts are for
| arger events where 200 or nore people will be served, for
instance at the [state] fair. She reiterated that if DEC
is not presently [inspecting and regulating an event], it
will not be [inspecting and regulating] it under this new
system

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what kind of a tracking system
DEC will be using to assure that the individual who is
taking the test is actually the person he/she says he/she
iS.

MS. RYAN expl ained that DEC is proposing purchasing an on-
| ine database from another state that already has this
program i n place. A card would be printed out at the end
of the 5-mnute test that the [food service workers] take,
she said. Wen DEC does inspections there would be a check

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- February 5, 2004



to see that workers have been certified. There will also
be a list generated by the database saying who has taken
the test and fromwhat facilities, she added.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there are any checks to
assure that the individual taking the test is who he/she
says he/she is or whether this test is given on the honor
system with the expectation that the managerial staff wll
verify [with the enpl oyee that he/she took the test].

M5. RYAN responded that there is a ot of trust involved in
this program The primary goal is that food handlers get
educated and the test is the nmechanismto see that the book
or on-line information was read, she added. It is
essential to food safety to know about the inportance of
hand washi ng, cross contam nation, cooling [food] quickly,
and heating [food] quickly. She enphasized that the [test]
will not be that difficult. Managers wll be held
accountable to ensure that their workers have that
under st andi ng, Ms. Ryan sai d.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if facilities [that will fal
under this program have expressed a need for this.

M5. RYAN replied that the Division of Environnental Health
did do an on-line survey and mailed the survey to all the
permt holders and asked what woul d be necessary to provide
a safe food handling system She said that of the 321 that
replied, 89 percent stated that having a mandatory food
manager certification would be necessary, and 82 percent
stated that a food handler training wuld also be
necessary. M. Ryan told the nenbers that there is also an
advi sory board who have been involved in the process and
who have been advising the division throughout the process.

Number 1503

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL conmented that the larger food
service businesses are already involved in this process;
however, what he sees will happen is that this regulation
will land on the "nom and pop" businesses. He said he
believes this wll be difficult for businesses that are
al ready struggling because they are already junping through
bur eaucratic hoops. Representati ve Coghill asked what M.
Ryan envisions as the fine for a business who does not have
a [certified food service] nmanager.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- February 5, 2004



M5. RYAN responded that the division's option in dealing
with recalcitrant businesses is to close the facility. It
is not the intent of this legislation to inpact people's
livelihood, but that may be the division's only recourse.
The fining capacity in the bill is $1,000. She said it is
inportant to note that it rarely gets that high. If a
business did not have a certified food service nanager,
that would not qualify for a serious violation; however, if
[i nspectors] went back there every year for five years and
there still was not a certified food service manager, then
that mght qualify for a high fine, she said. Fines are
one nore tool to encourage conpliance, Ms. Ryan added.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if he was correct in surmsing
that [actions agai nst businesses] vary in a spectrumfrom a
friendly rem nder to closing the business. He asked how
the division would deal with a business that has certified
staff, but is not operating appropriately.

M5. RYAN told the nenbers that the fine mechanisms w il be
clearly witten in regulation so that businesses know what
would nerit a fine and what would not. She said it is
inportant to note that the industry wll have an
opportunity to state what it believes is appropriate. The
di vision has been thinking that continued disregard of the
requirenents would nerit a fine of $100. Ms. Ryan
enphasized that the division's goal is to nmake sure
businesses do its job correctly, and does not [seek t0]
cl ose businesses down unless there is a serious threat that
t he public could be harned.

Nunmber 1695

CHAIR WLSON posed a question concerning a community event
that occurs every June during the salnon derby in Wangell
Teenagers conpeting for the role of queen by conpeting to
raise the nost funds. So every day for a nonth there are
booths with food for sale, she explained. Each of these
boot hs [coul d] raise $30,000 each. Chair WIson asked how
the certification process would work in this case.

M5. RYAN enphasized that if the division was not inspecting
and requiring tenporary food service permts before, then
there will not be any now. The intent of this bill is not
to increase oversight of events, she said. It sounds I|ike
this event has probably been an exenpt activity. Ms. Ryan
expl ai ned that when the division is aware of an event that

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- February 5, 2004



wll generate a lot of food booths, an inspector has gone
to that comunity the week before and done the two-hour
course wth participants so there is a fundanental
understanding [of food safety standards]. She added t hat
the determnation [of exenption] is based on how nany
people will be eating the product. M. Ryan offered to get
back to Chair Wl son on the event she nentioned.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON posed a hypothetical question on
fines. He said, for exanple, if an inspector found a
busi ness was unsanitary, and that it also had food handlers
that were not [certified], would the fine be doubl ed.

M5. RYAN responded that the division does not have the

regul ation paradigm fine-tuned on that issue yet. She
enphasized that as the division reviews the regulation
process those details will be discussed. She said she sees

only one fine [during one inspection].

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Ms. Ryan's comments about
the nunmber of people served determning the necessity for
certified staff. Wuld bed and breakfast establishnments
that serve people over a longer period of tinme, but fewer
i n nunber, be regul at ed.

M5. RYAN responded that bed and breakfasts are currently
exenpt from food safety and sanitation regul ations.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF stated that he does not believe the
nunbers are correct wth respect to the testinony
[ Testinony HB 378, 2/ 3/ 2004, Kristin Ryan, Director,
Division of Environnental Health, page 1] provided to the
commttee on the restaurant in Kenai which reportedly was
involved in an E. Coli outbreak.

Number 1992

M5. RYAN responded that she wll provide Representative
Wl f with the epidem ol ogy report on that case.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said he sees this program as a way of
growi ng government prograns. Representative WlIf cited
incidences in the past where there were efforts to prevent
children from getting alcohol and cigarettes through the

issuing of a card, which did not work. In the case of the
state regulating contractors, the only result he said he
ever saw was a state certified trainer naking noney. He

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- February 5, 2004



summarized his comments by saying that with all of these

prograns there are still kids getting alcohol and
cigarettes, there are still "fly-by-night" contractors, and
when this is passed, there wll still be people getting
si ck.

M5. RYAN responded that DEC has 18 inspectors, and that
[ nunmber] is not sufficient to regulate 5,000 facilities by
relying on inspections.

CHAI R W LSON asked if nore inspectors would be hired.

M5. RYAN answered that there will be 2 new positions to
manage training and certification.

CHAIR WLSON asked the nenbers to |ook at page 3, lines 23
and 24, which read as foll ows:

The use of this section for a violation does not
pr event i nposition of a penalty under as
45.50.561 for the sane violation.

CHAIR WLSON said she believes if the bill is adopted with
this language it appears the division will be allowed [to
fine] for nore than one penalty.

Number 2079

ELISE HSIEH, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Environnenta
Section, Departnent of Law, testified on HB 378 and
answered questions from the nenbers. She responded that
she did not draft the phrase Chair WIlson is referring to;
however, she did review it with Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Ed Sniffen, who does enforcenent of the Unfair Trade

Practices Act violations. Ms. Hsieh admtted that the
wording could be better. She explained that what this
[language] is actually saying is that if a [business]
violates a provision of [AS] 17.20, for exanple, in a
regulation or an order it could have two aspects. There
could be a health and safety aspect. For exanpl e,
lingering food which represents certain things that are
unsafe or unfit for consuners to eat. At the sane tine,
she said, that mslabeling could also be a violation of the
Unfair Trade Practices Act as being deceptive. The
assistant attorney general in <charge of [Unfair Trade
Practices Act] <could enforce that aspect, M. Hsieh

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- February 5, 2004



comment ed. She enphasized that this [language] is really
not about civil fines.

CHAIR WLSON clarified that her question is really about
how many times a [business] <could be penalized for
[violations].

M5. HSIEH said that she recalls someone asking if there
were several violations [in an inspection] would one fine
be inplenented, or several [fines] that would be stacked on
top [of each other]. She told the menbers that this point
woul d have to be addressed in the regulations. Ms. Hsieh
referred that question to Kristin Ryan. She pointed to
page 3, lines 23 and 23 which read:

The use of this section for a violation does not
pr event i nposition of a penalty under AS
45.50.471 - 45.50.561 for the sane violation.

M5. HSIEH reiterated that this |anguage only applies to the
Unfair Trade Practices Act. A [business] could be fined
[ separately] wunder that act if the violation fell wthin
t hat context, she added.

Nunber 2166

M5. RYAN explained that the reason this reference is
included in the bill is due to situations where the DEC has
been asked to hold a business accountable for a |abel that
is msleading. Wen a label is msleading in a harnful way
[that jeopardizes] health safety, then the departnent
agreed that it is appropriate [to handl e these violations],
she said. However, when a l|abel is msleading because it
| eads soneone to believe sonething was nade in Al aska, and
it was not, DEC does not believe it should be involved in
enforcing | abeling issues. Ms. Ryan told the nenbers that
this [language] was added with the intent that the fair
trade and conmerce attorney in the Departnent of Law could
take on those cases.

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON posed a hypothetical guesti on
regarding an inspection which revealed an unsanitary
condition or a condition where people who are not properly
| icensed are handling food. During this inspection it was
al so discovered that farnmed fish were being |abeled as
Al aska wild fish. He asked if he is correct in assum ng

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- February 5, 2004



that both violations could be prosecuted [with this
| anguage in the bill].

M5. RYAN replied that is correct.

CHAIR WLSON noted that many of the questions the nenbers

are asking cannot be answered until the regulations are
drawn up. She asked Ms. Ryan if the process used in
devel oping the regulations will include an opportunity for

interested parties to comment on them

M5. RYAN told the nenbers that if the bill passes, the
division plans to hold workshops beginning in My or
whenever the bill becones |aw. The division would go to

| arger communities, discuss what is being proposed, and get
feedback from peopl e. She added that regulation drafting
woul d be based on the [results] of those workshops.

CHAIR WLSON asked how the division would address the
problens that face snmaller conmmunities. She pointed out
that there are many nore small comunities [that should be
consi der ed] .

Number 2265

M5. RYAN explained that through the regulation drafting
process a packet is sent out to every permt holder, so it
will be possible for everyone to comment on the regul ations
and give their input.

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that interested [parties] could
also call into the public neetings.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL explained that the reason he

struggles with this bill is due to the fact that it is
increasing fines and asking DEC to |ook over soneone's
shoul der. It is also true that public health is sonething
this committee is very concerned about, he said. There is
a question of balance, he said. Representative Coghill

added that Ms. Ryan did a good job of answering questions
from the commttee, but he really wants to have sone
confort that DEC is not going to be at his church social

with fines for violations. This bill wll create another
| ayer of bureaucracy that eating establishnents wll have
to deal W th; however, i nspections are sonet hi ng
[ busi nesses] are famliar wth. Since there are not many

i nspections, he said, this is probably a good conprom se

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- February 5, 2004



sol ution. He added that he is still struggling wth the
bill, but would like to see it come to a vote before he
| eaves the neeting.

Number 2339

ROBI N NORTHSEYER, Owmner, Northern Hospitality Training,
testified in support of HB 378. She told the nenbers that
she cones from the restaurant industry both as a food
handler and a manager for the last 30 vyears. V5.
Nort hseyer explained that training is a big issue when
tal king about keeping the public safe from food borne
illness. She said it is so easy to make people sick
t hrough food borne illness that it is positively scary.

TAPE 04-9, SIDE B
Nunber 2341

M5. NORTHSEYER told the nenbers that she has trained over
300 food handlers and she is always amazed at what little
know edge the [food handlers] have about very basic food
safety procedures such as, how and when to wash hands and
how easy it is to transmt disease from hands to food. M.
Nort hseyer pointed out that food safety is very inportant
in a state like Alaska that relies heavily on tourism I n
her seven years of work in the tourism industry she becane
aware of the age group of the tourists who cone to Al aska.
Many of them are elderly and are susceptible to food
poi soni ng. Ms. Northseyer summarized her comrents by
saying that from the trainers' and managers' standpoint,
training is key to keeping food safe.

CHAIR WLSON comented that her nmain concern is that
training is as accessible as possible. She urged the
division to nmake it available on-line because it wll be
difficult for small comunities [to access the training].
She urged that the wording on page [3, line 23 and 24] be
wor ked on between conmttees.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Ryan if the training
material will be available as mail out materials as well as
on the Internet.

M5. RYAN replied that the division is still working out the
details, but anticipates being able to provide the testing
materials in witing for those that will need it. It would

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- February 5, 2004



require the manager of the establishnment to proctor the
exam she said.

Nunber 2261

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HB 378 out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, HB

378 was reported from the House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmttee.

The commttee took an at-ease from3:58 p.m to 4:00 p. m

HB 337- ANATOM CAL d FTS REGQ STRY

Number 2154

CHAIR WLSON announced that the final order of business
would be CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 337(STA), "An Act relating
to anatomcal donor registries, to an anatomcal gift
awar eness fund, to an anatom cal gift awareness program to
notor vehicle licenses and registrations, and to state
identification cards." Chair WIson rem nded the nenbers
that the commttee had a hearing on this bill |ast week and
there was agreenent that there needed [to be sone changes
in the |anguage]. The sponsor of the bill has drafted an
amendnent to address the concerns of the commttee, she
sai d. Chair WIlson asked M. Hilyard to present Anendnent
1.

Nunber 2110

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Lesil MQire,
Al aska State Legislature, presented an anmendnent to CSHB
337(STA) for Representative MQ@iire, sponsor, and answered
guestions from the nenbers. He told the commttee he
believes [Amendnent 1] wll clarify J[and correct] any
guestions the nenbers had during the |ast neeting.

CHAIR WLSON told M. Hlyard that she would |ike the three
portions of Amendnent 1 to be handled as part A B, and C

MR. HI LYARD began discussion of Anmendnent 1, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

TECHNI CAL AMENDIVENT
(Page 3, Lines 30-31)

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- February 5, 2004



(b) The purposes of the fund [IS] are to pronote

gifts under AS 13.50.010 - 13.50.090 and to
adm ni ster the donation program established under
AS 13.50. 150.

CONCEPTUAL AMENDVENT

(Page 4, Lines 12-14)

(4) "motor vehicle docunent”™ neans a notor
vehicle registration, a driver's |license, an
instruction permt, or state identification, or a
renewal of the registration, |icense, or permt;

CONCEPTUAL AMENDVENT

(Page 4, Lines 15-17)

(5) "procurenent organization”™ [MEANS A PERSON
LI CENSED, ACCREDI TED, OR APPROVED UNDER THE LAWS
OF A STATE FOR THE PROCUREMENT, DI STRI BUTIQON, OR
STORAGE OF BODY PARTS] neans an organi zation that
has been designated by the United States
Departnent of Health and Human Services to
coordinate activities for the procurenent of body
parts, for any portion of this state;

MR. HI LYARD pointed out that [part A] which is a technical
anendnent is intended to correct a grammatical error on
page 3, Ilines 30 and 31. He said Terry Bannister,
Legislative Legal and Research Services, pointed out the
necessity for the change. The wording is changed from the
"purpose” of the fund "is" to the "purposes"” of the fund
"are", M. Hlyard said.

CHAIR WLSON said in response to Representative Seaton's
guestion as to the handling of the anendnent, that it is
her intention to handle these changes as one anendnent
unl ess the nmenbers have a problemw th a portion of it.

Nunmber 2068

MR. H LYARD told the nenbers that the next change [part B]
is a conceptual [change] because it my need to be

rephrased once the bill goes to Legislative Legal and
Research Services for a revision. This change refers to
page 4, lines 12 through 14, where notor vehicle docunent
[adds] "or state identification.” He said that | anguage

had been accidentally omtted and Terry Bannister pointed
that out and suggested it be included to ensure the bill
i ncluded all forns of notor vehicle docunents.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- February 5, 2004



Number 2047

MR. H LYARD commented that [part C is also a conceptual
anendnent which goes to the heart of the questions nenbers
di scussed at the last neeting. On page 4, lines 15 through
17 which reads as foll ows:

(5) "procurenent organization" neans a person
| i censed, accredited, or approved under the |aws
of a state for the procurenent, distribution, or
storage of body parts;

MR. HI LYARD explained that [part C] deletes the |anguage
currently in CSHB 337(STA), Version U, and replaces it and
returns it to the original |anguage that was in Version I.
He added that Version | was the first version that was read
across the House. VWhat the bill wll says is that
[ procurement organi zation] "nmeans an organization that has
been designated by the United States Departnent of Health
and Human Services to coordinate activities for the
procurenent of body parts, for any portion of this state.”
He told the nenbers that this wording has been cleared
t hrough Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services, LifeCenter
Nort hwest, and the [Departnent of Adm nistration], Division
of Mot or Vehicles.

Number 2012

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved Anendnent 1. There being no
obj ection, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 1985

RAY VIDIC testified in support of HB 337. He told the
commttee that he has a friend who has been on dialysis for
ten years. This bill is inportant because anytine there is
an increase in donations, there is a reduction of
suffering, and whoever receives an organ has their quality
of life inproved, he said. There are nmany people in the
state of Alaska and the nation who are suffering because
they are in need of an organ.

MR. VIDI C gave a glinpse of his friend John's life. He has
been on dialysis for ten years, has had last rites
pronounced on him tw ce. He receives dialysis at hone
three tines per week because he chooses to live in Juneau

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- February 5, 2004



with his famly, rather than [noving] sonmewhere where it
can be done for free. Since the dialysis is done Mnday,
Wednesday, and Friday, there is a longer period of tine
bet ween Friday and Monday and during that time he gains 20
pounds, he expl ai ned. He has a special insert in his arm
for drawing the blood in and out. That insert has had to
be noved tw ce, he said.

Nunber 1940

MR VIDIC told of two nonths of John's life. He was up in
Anchorage and had to have seven-eighths of his thyroid
renoved because of a condition that results from being on
di al ysi s. He was al so bleeding rectally so he also had to
have a col onoscopy. Because of his weakened state the
doctor punctured his colon and had to have an energency
surgery where he had to have an [incision] from his

breastpl ate down past his navel. On his way hone in the
Anchorage airport his stitches burst and had to return to
the hospital. H's son, who is 14 years old, had to handle
the 911 call.

MR VIDIC told the nenbers that this guy is a fighter. I n
ten years he hasn't conpl ai ned. Hs life is good and he
has his son, sonething to live for, M. Vidic said. He
said that the conmttee's work will decrease the suffering

of so many people like him

MR VIDIC told the nmenbers that in his conversation wth
his friend, he found that while John has been on a list for
10 years; he has no idea who nanages the list or where he
is on the list. He is too busy trying to stay alive. M.
Vidic summari zed his comments by saying that if one life is
saved because of this legislation, then the nenbers have
done a wonderful thing.

Nunber 1846

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF comrented that M. Vidic's testinony
hits home to him because his wife's cousin needs a |liver
transplant. He added that she has been on a list for over
12 years. This is a good bill, he said.

CHAIR WLSON encouraged [the nenbers and public] to have
their blood drawn and to register to be a donor.

Number 1799

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- February 5, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there are age or disease
limtati ons on being a donor.

Number 1752

MR VIDIC replied that he understands the limtations are
set by the organ procurenent providers. Hospitals will do
a battery of tests both on the individual's physical and
psychol ogical health to see if +the donation would be
accept abl e.

Number 1752

CHAIR WLSON announced for the record that Representative
Cissna is on-line.

Nunber 1742

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA commented that her late husband,
Stan, had the kidney of a nine year old girl and it was the

heal t hi est part of his body. It gave him nine years of
life that was very rich, she said. She asked for
clarification on the two ways in which a person gets on the
[organ donor] registry. One is getting a blood test and

signing up, and the other is to register through the DW
She asked if one is nore binding than the other.

Nunber 1677

CHAIR W LSON explained that a person can get a blood test
and when the registry is looking for a match, then that

i ndi vi dual would be contacted. This [procedure] is wth
respect to live donation of a kidney, for instance. Chair
Wlson clarified that this bill is really dealing with the

situation where there has been a death [through an
acci dent | and the troopers could identify that the
[ deceased] person is a donor because of the notation on the
person's driver's |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked if the notation on the driver's
| icense is as binding as the donor who has gone through the
bl ood test and has gone to the registry.

Number 1609

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- February 5, 2004



MR. HILYARD responded that in conversations with LifeCenter
Nort hwest and DW he found that the standard is that if
there are two next of kin that will swear an affidavit that
there had been a change in the individual's wllingness to
be an organ donor, then that would be grounds to contest

the organ donation. M. Hlyard said he was told by
LifeCenter Northwest that that situation does not occur
that frequently. Many tinmes once the organ procurenent

organi zation, such as LifeCenter Northwest, has had the
ability to counsel wth the famly that frequently the
organ donation intent is upheld and the organs are
har vest ed. M. Hlyard pointed out that the information
from the DW is just being listed in the registry. The
registry does not list their physical qualifications or any
medi cal history.

Number 1555
CHAIR WLSON pointed out that it is inportant to know as

soon as possible if there will be an organ donati on because
there is a difference in how the body is taken care of.

Nunber 1542

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSHB 337(HES) out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

337(HES) was reported from House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the committee, the

House Health, Education and Soci al Services Standing
Comm ttee neeting was adjourned at 4:36 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- February 5, 2004



